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March 7, 2026

The Honorable Maxine Dexter
(Portland District Office)

911 NE 11th Ave

Portland, OR 97232

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL — RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

CC (Washington D.C. Office)
1207 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

CC (Copies Sent To):

Rep. Pramila Jayapal: 2346 Rayburn HOB, Washington, DC 20515

Rep. Alexandria Ocasio-Cortez: 250 Cannon HOB, Washington, DC 20515
Rep. Ilhan Omar: 1730 Longworth HOB, Washington, DC 20515

Rep. Rashida Tlaib: 2438 Rayburn HOB, Washington, DC 20515

Rep. Ro Khanna: 306 Cannon HOB, Washington, DC 20515

Rep. Thomas Massie: 2371 Rayburn HOB, Washington, DC 20515

Rep. Robert Garcia: 109 Cannon HOB, Washington, DC 20515

Rep. Nancy Mace: 1728 Longworth HOB, Washington, DC 20515

Sen. Bernie Sanders 332 Dirksen Building, Washington, DC 20510

Dear Representative Dr. Maxine Dexter (and others).
I am requesting your assistance.

This request for intervention is necessitated by a pattern of extreme extrajudicial actions that have
escalated into a matter of life and death. Specifically, I am bringing to your attention the suspicious deaths
of both my common-law husband, Christopher Newman, and my father Richard Meyer — though there
have been many others. Based on a consistent pattern of medical interference, surveillance-driven
isolation, patterns of injury, and the blacklisting (including by courts and law enforcement) described
herein, I have reason to believe their deaths were not natural occurrences but were the result of a
coordinated conspiracy to silence and dismantle my family unit. I am notifying your office of these
fatalities not as an exhaustive presentation of evidence—which will be provided during the appropriate
investigative phase—but to establish the severe gravity of the criminal enterprise I am reporting. The use
of technological and biomedical tools to facilitate these ends constitutes a level of state and corporate
overreach that demands immediate legislative scrutiny. In addition, it’s clear that while in some ways,
Chris and I were centered in the crime, we are not the only victims. For example, Portland Community
College seems to be running a network in which they are trafficking surveillance of their own students,



including from women’s restrooms and locker rooms, to powerful entities in the entertainment industry
(Hollywood, Las Vegas, & New York City), and likely elsewhere as well. There are many signs that
pharmaceutical and medical research industries are major participants in and beneficiaries of this pattern
of surveillance, biomedical manipulation, biomedical murder.

BACKGROUND

On January 20, 2014 I discovered evidence of intrusive surveillance in my home where I then resided
with my daughter, Brook Thompson, who had just turned 18 one month earlier, and my fiancée/common
law husband, Chris Newman. This is a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2511 and ORS 165.540.

It was obvious that surveillance data had been collected from inside our home and disseminated widely.
At this point I could see that surveillance had been distributed throughout the region as certain things
were being reflected back through local media sources (Portland Mercury, Willamette Week, etc) and in
song lyrics by regional musicians. I knew, by what was reflected back to me, that there were images and
audio being distributed from our bedroom. I could tell that my office web cam had been hijacked, and it
happened to point at an open door to our bathroom. Later I also received conclusive evidence that my
laptop had been compromised, as was my daughter's desktop computer which was in her bedroom,
violations of ORS 163.7011, 18 U.S.C. § 2251, 18 U.S.C. § 2252 /2252A(1) and 18 U.S. Code§ 1201
(I)(B); 18 U.S. Code § 1465, 18 U.S. Code§ 1961(1)(B); 18 U.S. Code§ 1466 (see appendix for details).

I immediately attempted to report this to Portland Police. The officer with whom I spoke did not give me
a chance to explain. He told me that before he takes a report, according to protocol, I needed to be cleared
by a doctor first. [ agreed to speak with a doctor. I did not understand that he was bringing me to an
emergency room. And not only did he bring me to an emergency room, he just left me there.

When doctors and police asked me the normal questions, I gave the normal brief answers: I am not

depressed, I am not suicidal, I am not thinking of harming myself or anyone else. [ am just trying to report
el

a crime.

Nonetheless, this doctor at Adventist Hospital attempted to put me on a 72 hour hold. I begged them to
release me so I could go home and care for my daughter and husband, and fortunately they did, on the
condition that [ accept a bottle of Ativan, a tranquilizer I did not need. Later, I requested my medical
records and found that not only were they entirely fabricated - with false quotes, etc - but some of the
fabricated quotes that they attributed to me were actually taken from conversations I'd had in my own
home, where Chris and I were alone.

After this, I tried two or three more times to complete this police report, but the police simply refused to
take a report from me. After this, it took me many years to get my police records. When I was finally able
to see this record for the first time in late 2020, more than six years after the fact, [ can see that there had
been some type of report made, and it was colored to make it seem like I was "mentally ill" and it appears
that the goal was to get me permanently hospitalized - something that is confirmed through other records
fabricated, filed and kept at the time.

By now, of course, I know that the officer knew long before I did that I had been under surveillance, and
that he - and all the police - as well as the doctors at the hospital - had been witnesses and beneficiaries of
the surveillance, which was being orchestrated at a federal government level, with financial rewards for
participation in this, and associated destructive acts, being distributed to state, county, and city
governments, as well as to various businesses and private entities. It was, and is, a criminal enterprise
being run by the federal government. The police - whose job is to protect and serve the community - were
in fact a key part of this enterprise, and the reason that they wanted to frighten and confine me was to



continue this criminal activity. I was kidnapped specifically in order to prevent me from accessing legal
assistance and to continue the crime - and that is what happened, and what is still happening. 18 USC§
1512(a)(2)(A)

However, it was quite some time before I understood this, due to widespread pervasive deceit, including
deceit by those whom I'd known and trusted my entire life. In fact, the only ones who were not deceitful
to me were my husband and daughter. That, too, took me some time to understand. It took time for me to
understand the deceit of my brother and my parents - especially my mother, who appears to have taken
part in these operations against me, though I doubt she was fully informed as to what was going on,
performing more as a financially-motivated "useful idiot." Based on her behavior since that time, I
believe she - and several others - deliberately made several false reports about me to various officials. It's
very unlikely this would have happened spontaneously.

In any case, because the situation was - and continues to be - completely unacceptable - my next plan was
to hire a music rights attorney. Because everyone in Portland and Seattle appeared to be compromised,
and because there were major record labels who appeared to owe us a great deal of money due to decades
of intellectual property theft (violations of 17 U.S.C. § 506/ 18 U.S.C. § 2319; 18 U.S.C. § 1832; ORS
646.461 — 646.475), I thought I would try to hire an attorney in California who would help us straighten
out both the surveillance issues, and the intellectual property rights theft issues. I took money that my
daughter had saved from summer jobs - because, due to blacklisting, I had no money, and because my
number one goal was to protect my daughter - to hopefully put a retainer on an attorney or cover some
costs. I knew I could show that we were owed several million dollars and I expected that there would be
an attorney willing to take our case on contingency.

However, a huge takedown operation had been unleashed, and I was followed down to California, my car
was sabotaged (a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 33; ORS 164.365; ORS 163.195), and eventually after I had
sought refuge in the home of someone I believed was a friend, Sacramento County Sheriffs came with
firefighters to the door - and she let them come in, handcuff me, and forcibly take me to a mental health
hospital. In that hospital I was subjected to trauma-based control techniques and attacks with electronic
weaponry, and that kind of thing has been going on ever since. I won't get into the details of all that here,
but it's been a complete horror show, with severe illnesses, disfigurement, and murders in my family and
globally, all showing patterns of bioelectronic weapons use (ORS 163.160-163.185, ORS 163.175, 18
U.S.C. § 1347, ORS 677.097, 18 U.S. Code§ 1961 (1)(B); 18 U.S. Code§ 1513; and 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-
7b). And though from the very day I discovered the surveillance, I have made it crystal clear that DO
NOT CONSENT - it continues to this very day. Every single day I see evidence of it on national
television where it's treated as a joke or game. It's so common that [ know for a FACT I do not have to
explain it to you. Everyone knows it's happening.

There have been numerous illegal entries into my dwellings - including while I am asleep in the same
room (bioelectronic anesthesia obviously being used to render me unconscious - which I can infer is how
many of these implants were put into my body to begin with) and evidence as well as personal papers and
effects removed from my physical possession as well as from hard drives and the Google cloud, a
violation of 18 USC 1512(a)(2)(B).

Through all of this I've continued to seek justice for the past twelve years, without success. I've gotten
better and better at collecting, organizing, and documenting evidence, including scientific evidence, and -
this part is important — based on evidence and experience I now know beyond any doubt that:

1. This surveillance existed when I first tried to report it, and it continues to exist today.
2. This surveillance is being trafficked globally.



3. This surveillance is associate with use of weaponized bioelectronic systems - body area networks
with brains and bodies remotely manipulated and controlled (including endocrine systems,
automatic functions such as breathing and heart rate, etc) and often injured - with chronic and
autoimmune diseases created an manipulated, including things like heart disease, strokes, cancer.

4. That the mind control (brain function) part of this system is quite powerful and can also be very
deadly.

5. That these biomedical weapons are routinely used to control biological functions and behavior in
large portions of the population. This includes things like romantic relationships, parent-child
relationships, and gender identity.

6. That these bioelectronic weapons are routinely used to murder.

7. That these bioelectronic weapons are known to exist and are consistently covered up, especially

by doctors, dentists, nurses, psychologists, and academic institutions.

That these bioelectronic weapons are related to surveillance-based sex trafficking and abuse.

9. That these bioelectronic weapons are associated with an underground financial system that pays
dividends to investors.

10. That there are paramilitary counter-surveillance operations associated with this enterprise, like the
operation that resulted in my January 2014 kidnapping attempt and subsequent successful
kidnapping (disguised as a medical hold).

11. That people are rewarded financially and with goods and services for their participation in this
scheme.

12. That people are made to believe they cannot exit the scheme once they enter.

13. That people are unconstitutionally made to give up their very CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS as
part of this enterprise - especially their first amendment right to free speech and free association.
This is how everyone is kept silent and deceitful, and how I am kept blacklisted.

14. That this entire operation is being run by the United States government via the FBI and DOJ.

*

People want to continue to play this game with me where they pretend the "don't believe" me or that I am
"mentally ill" and somehow concocting all this out of thin air. To this end, they find different ways to
bait, libel, and gaslight me.

You need to understand that I know what is going on, and I know how dishonest this is. That I deserve the
same rights as any other American, and as any other human being.

If you desire more information about evidence I've collected, including scientific tests I've been able to
conduct and document on my own, as well as research into the history of this technology via primary
sources, there is a lot of information and media on my website, and I continue to add the website, as there
is a lot more in my archives.

Because law enforcement is complicit in this crime, and thus abdicated their duty, because the entire
Department of Justice is is corrupted by this, because the entire executive branch is swallowed up by this
(and this appears to be independent of party), because my access to legal assistance has been blocked,
because my doctors have been lying to me, and because nearly everyone in my orbit has been lying about
me, and finally, because it's clear that my Senators Wyden & Merkley are complicit with no intent of
changing - and because you have recently written that "accountability is my north star" - I am reaching
out to you for help.

NECESSARY ACTION

Here is what I'm asking to be initiated within the next 30 days:



A. A direct consultation: I request a one-on-one meeting to discuss the issue, and if necessary, to present
or explain the scientific evidence I have collected. If you are unable to meet in person, a meeting over
Zoom is acceptable. This would be a good opportunity to develop an action plan to get me out of this
horrible situation, and to a place where the real issues can be openly addressed, especially the issue of
bioelectronic abuse.

B. I am asking you to advocate for me, publicly, in defiance of the unwritten, unspoken "rule" of denying
me (and everyone else) 1st amendment rights by blacklisting me and refusing to speak about me and
refusing to recognize or address these crimes. I believe that I deserve nothing less from my
representatives than the same advocacy and consideration that has been shown to the Epstein survivors.
Especially since it is the federal government which has been behind my abuse. Nothing should be easier
than speaking out against crime - and I have more than enough evidence (not that I should need it)
showing that [ am a crime victim, and that the crime is being facilitated by the FBI.

C. I am asking you to work with me on a plan to help others who are in similar positions. I have seen
evidence of surveillance cameras in fire sprinklers throughout Portland, including in department store
dressing rooms, restaurant toilets, all Portland Community College campus womens' locker rooms and
restrooms (at least on the Southeast and Cascade Campuses, but based on that, one could infer, on all
PCC campuses), and I have reason to believe, in private bedrooms, including, but not limited to my own.
I believe this is actually widely known to exist and for some reason, tolerated. Clearly, the Portland Police
Department and Fire Department are complicit, but from what I've seen this is a national issue. It's been
an issue in every city or state where I lived - again, because it is the FBI/DOJ behind it.

D. Zero tolerance for lies and deceit around this crime. It's government-run human trafficking. You know
the facts, [ know the facts, everyone knows the facts. And congress is full of lawyers who SHOULD
know the law.

E. Assist me in accessing whatever materials have already been disseminated, so I can better understand
what I'm dealing with as far as theft and manipulation of my image and life's work. I am aware that there
is a 3rd party platform or platforms involved in this.

F. My pet cat and support animal, Roxy, has been bioelectronically tortured, daily, since about 2016 and
particularly severely since 2021. I have reported this several times to Multnomah County Animal Services
and I also reported it to Portland Police, who refused to investigate, despite this being a both a state and
federal felony crime with affirmative duty to arrest (ORS 167.320, ORS 167.322, ORS 133.379, 18
U.S.C. § 48). I have documented this extensively, and [ have found the same bioelectronic signals in her
body, in the same basic locations, as I've found in my body. I want these cruel attacks to this innocent
almost 18 year old cat ended immediately.

!'Since my first failed attempt to report this crime and hire an attorney in 2014, note that - at least before 1
understood the role of the FBI in this crime - I tried to report this crime SEVERAL additional times to the
police AND the FBI. Both consistently and repeated refused to "investigate" (28 CFR 0.85(a)) Now I
understand it is because they were the ones conducting the crimes on behalf of the federal government.
Nonetheless, ORS 131.125 has extended the statute of limitations for some of these crimes to 20 years,
so with your help, I can still see justice.





